1995

# Weber County v. Ronnie Earl Chambers : Brief of Appellant

Utah Court of Appeals

### STATEMENT OF JURISDICTION

The Utah Court of Appeals Supreme Court has jurisdiction over the instant appeal pursuant to Utah Code Ann. § 78-2a-3(2)(e).

### STATEMENT OF ISSUES / STANDARDS OF REVIEW

1. Whether the State's evidence at trial was sufficient to establish, as an integral element of the charged crimes, defendant's ownership of the subject property beyond a reasonable doubt. When reviewing a claim of insufficiency of the evidence in a bench trial, the appellate court applies the "clearly erroneous" standard, "which

requires that 'if the findings (or the trial court's verdict in a criminal case) are against the clear weight of the evidence, or if the appellate court otherwise reaches a definite and firm conviction that a mistake has been made, the findings (or verdict) will be set aside.'" *State v. Featherson*, 781 P.2d 424, 431-32 (Utah 1989) (quoting *State v. Walker*, 743 P.2d 191, 193 (Utah 1987)); *Provo City Corp. v. Spotts*, 861 P.2 437 (Utah Ct. App. 1993). Notwithstanding the foregoing, the appellate court has the ultimate power to conduct an independent review of constitutional claims such as the issue in this case concerning the standard of guilt beyond a reasonable doubt as required by the constitutional right to due process. See *State v. Thurman*, 846 P.2d 1256, 1266 (Utah 1993). Although considerable deference is accorded to factual findings, the trial court's conclusion of law that ownership by Defendant of the subject property was proven beyond a reasonable doubt is given no special deference and thus reviewed for correctness. See *State v. Pena*, 869 P.2d 932, 939 (Utah 1994). Trial counsel preserved this issue, as well as subsidiary issues, by moving to dismiss after the State's case-in-chief (R. 162-63, Transcript of Trial).

2. Whether the trial court, by failing to rule on the pending motions before it on temporary remand from this Court, erred by failing to fully and fairly address all the issues surrounding the altered exhibit as implicitly required by this Court's temporary remand Order -- thereby frustrating the judicial process by its

failure to fully and fairly resolve the matters before it pertaining to the altered exhibit. The claim that the trial court failed to comply with this Court Order is a conclusion of law, which is reviewed for correctness. See *State v. Pena*, 869 P.2d 932, 939 (Utah 1994).

#### **DETERMINATIVE AUTHORITY**

The constitutional provisions, statutes, ordinances, rules, and regulations, whose interpretation is determinative, are set out verbatim, with the appropriate citation, in the body and arguments of the instant brief.

#### **STATEMENT OF THE CASE**

On or about June 22, 1994, Mr. Ronnie Earl Chambers, by way of Information, was charged with a zoning ordinance violation, a class B misdemeanor, which was amended to a class C misdemeanor, in violation of Weber County Zoning Ordinance 5-1 et seq., and a fire ordinance violation, a class B misdemeanor, in violation of Weber County Fire Code Ordinance 11-1-1 et seq., and violation of the Utah Fire Code § 79.101 et seq., in relation to the subject property located at approximately 4425 East Highway 162 in Weber County. A bench trial was held before the District Court Judge Parley R. Baldwin on January 12 and 17, 1995. Upon conclusion of the bench trial, the trial court immediately found Defendant guilty on both counts.



At sentencing on April 20, 1995, the trial court, for the zoning violation, imposed a fine in the amount of \$750.00 and 90 days in the Weber County Jail. The trial court suspended \$500.00 of the fine and the 90 days in jail "on the condition that every ounce of that equipment is taken out of there within 30 days." For the fire code ordinance violation, the trial court again imposed a fine in the amount of \$750.00 and 90 days in the Weber County Jail, which was suspended on the same condition as that on the zoning violation. The trial court signed its Judgment, Sentence (Commitment) on April 20, 1998, which was entered that same day. Defendant filed Notice of Appeal on May 11, 1998.

On appeal, Defendant, on January 9, 1996, filed a Motion to Stay Briefing Deadline Pending Temporary Remand to Trial Court for Determination Concerning Trial Exhibit. On January 29, 1996, this Court granted Defendant's Motion to Stay, temporarily remanding the case to the trial court for a determination as to the alleged exhibit tampering. Approximately one year later, the trial court's incomplete findings of fact and conclusions of law as to the altered exhibit issue were filed in this Court.

#### **STATEMENT OF FACTS**

1. On or about June 22, 1994, Mr. Ronnie Earl Chambers, by way of Information, was charged with a zoning ordinance violation, a class B misdemeanor, in violation of Weber County Zoning Ordinance 5-

1 et seq.,<sup>1</sup> and a fire ordinance violation, a class B misdemeanor, in violation of Weber County Fire Code Ordinance 11-1-1 et seq., and violation of the Utah Fire Code § 79.101 et seq.,<sup>2</sup> in relation to the subject property located at approximately 4425 East Highway 162 in Weber County (R. 1-3, Information and Summons);

2. A bench trial was held on the charges before the Honorable Parley R. Baldwin on September 12 and 17, 1995 (R. 60-330, Transcript of Trial);

3. At trial, during the State's case-in-chief, Mr. Craig C. Barker, Director of the Weber County Planning Commission, testified as follows:

**MS. HURTADO:** Mr. Barker, let me hand this to you.  
And do you recognize what this is?

**MR. BARKER:** Yes, I do.

**MS. HURTADO:** And what is it?

---

<sup>1</sup>As to the alleged zoning ordinance violation in Count I of the Information, the State, in the Information, alleges that Mr. Ronnie Earl Chambers, between September 22, 1992, to June 22, 1994, violated the Weber County zoning ordinance by "keeping and maintaining a construction equipment yard located at approximately 4425 East Highway 162, in Weber County in an A-1 zone where a construction equipment yard is not a permitted nor a conditional use." (R. 1, Information).

<sup>2</sup>In Count II of the Information, which is the alleged fire ordinance violation, the State alleges that between May 6, 1994, and June 22, 1994, Mr. Ronnie Earl Chambers violated the Weber County Fire Ordinance "by keeping and maintaining fuel tanks, located at approximately 4425 East Highway 162, in Weber County, in violation of the Uniform Fire Code, Article No. 79- [sic] Flammable and Combustible Liquids, as adopted by the Weber County Fire Code Ordinances." (R. 2, Information).

**MR. BARKER:** This is an enlargement of the property -- Weber County property plat for the property in question -- one of the properties shown on this plat.

**MS. HURTADO:** And does that accurately depict that area that is showing?

**MR. BARKER:** I believe it does, yes.

**MS. HURTADO:** Now, if you would, could you please stand and for the record note where the property in question is on this diagram?

**MR. BARKER:** This property identified -- this is a partial number of the land serial number for the property which is noted here as 0144. It says Ronnie Earl Chambers on it.

**MS. HURTADO:** Mr. Storey -- Mr. Storey, I'm sorry. Mr. Barker, you are familiar with this map. Are you familiar with any changes that occurred in this map over the last ten years, for example, as far as ownership?

**MR. BARKER:** Yes, I happened to review the property ownership books of prior years -- 1966, for example -- that we have on our -- in our office, and noted that the property is -- Mr. Chambers' property was not separated from the property noted on there as No. 0027, at that time. It was all one parcel.

(R. 76-77, Transcript of Trial);<sup>3</sup>

---

<sup>3</sup>On cross-examination, Mr. Barker admitted basing his ownership determination of the property in 1989 merely on the correspondence in his complaint file (R. 84-85, Transcript of Trial). In fact, when pressed about how he determined ownership of the property in 1989, Mr. Barker admitted that "there is another member of the planning commission who would - doing the complaints at the time may be able to better answer that than I." (*Id.* at 84, lines 16-25).

4. During the State's case-in-chief, Mr. Edward T. Reed, a former planning commission member on the Weber County Planning Commission, testified as follows:

MS. HURTADO: Noting this document [referring to Plaintiff's Exhibit 1], do you recognize this, that's on the wall?

MR. REED: This document is an enlargement of -- it appears to be the official county recorder's plats.

MS. HURTADO: And can you identify the defendant's property on that?

MR. REED: I can, yes.

MS. HURTADO: Will you just point to it?

MR. REED: This is the defendant's property here.

\* \* \* \*

MS. HURTADO: And what complaint was brought to your attention on this matter?

MR. REED: That there was equipment parked on the property.

MS. HURTADO: And what was your action in response to that complaint?

MR. REED: Reaction to that was to actually go up and look at the property and to see what was on the property.

MS. HURTADO: And what did you observe at that time?

MR. REED: Based on my recollection -- and I have no documentation in the file -- that there was a front-end loader on the property, and I believe a pile of gravel.

MS. HURTADO: When are you referring to, as far as time?

MR. REED: I believe that was probably in 1989 when we received the complaint.

MS. HURTADO: And who did you address that to at that time; do you recall?

MR. REED: At that time I believe contact was made with Earl Chambers.

(R. 87, lines 6-14, R. 88-89, Transcript of Trial);

5. On cross-examination, Mr. Reed elicited the following testimony concerning ownership of the subject property:

MR. ARNOLD: Now, you testified, did you not, that this is Ronnie Chambers' property?

MR. REED: That's correct.

MR. ARNOLD: Can you tell me what you base that decision on?

MR. REED: Ronnie Chambers' property?

MR. ARNOLD: Yes.

MR. REED: I base it on the fact that that is a blowup of the county recorder's plats and Mr. Ronnie Earl Chambers' name is on it.

MR. ARNOLD: When was that made?

MR. REED: This particular plat, I couldn't tell you when it was made.

MR. ARNOLD: Is it possible that Mr. Chambers could have conveyed that property since that time?

MR. REED: That's a possibility.

MR. ARNOLD: And is it possible that sometime between somebody writing Mr. Chambers' name on there and when you looked at it, he could have conveyed that property away, prior to that?

MR. REED: That's a possibility, I suppose.

MR. ARNOLD: So, it's possible that he doesn't own the property then; isn't that correct?

MR. REED: I have no knowledge whether he owns the property now or not.

MR. ARNOLD: Or owned it when you looked at the map?

MR. REED: Well, that's entirely possible.

(R. 99-100, Transcript of Trial);

6. On redirect examination, Mr. Reed then testified as follows:

MS. HURTADO: And is there an investigation conducted as far as that observation you made on that complaint?

MR. REED: Yes.

MS. HURTADO: And what kind of investigation is that?

MR. REED: What I would do is I would go back to the office, locate it on the maps that we have available, and that would include the county recorder's maps. And we would also secure the data that the county recorder has on file as to the ownership of the property. That would include the -- verify the name, that would give the address of the property owner.

MS. HURTADO: On this complaint in particular, did you do the normal investigation?

MR. REED: I worked it up, yes; that's correct.

MS. HURTADO: So, at that time did you verify who was the owner?

MR. REED: At that time, it was Mr. Chambers.

MS. HURTADO: And that was in 1992?

MR. REED: That's correct.

(R. 101, Transcript of Trial);

7. Mr. Reed testified to the following on recross examination:

MR. ARNOLD: When you went out in May of 1989 and took these photographs --

MR. REED: Yes.

MR. ARNOLD: -- you didn't verify who the owner was then; did you?

MR. REED: As I recall, I believe I did, yes.

MR. ARNOLD: How did you do that?

MR. REED: I can do that by looking at the county recorder's plats and calling up the county recorder's office.

MR. ARNOLD: Can you specifically recall the county recorder telling you that that was owned by Ronnie Chambers?

MR. REED: As I -- that's going back quite a ways. But, yes, I believe that's correct.

MR. ARNOLD: you remember that conversation?

MR. REED: Not, you know, word for word of the conversation, no.

MR. ARNOLD: Okay. Do you know what the county recorder looked at to verify that information?

MR. REED: What they would look at is what --

MR. ARNOLD: No, do you know what he looked at -- or he looked at at that time?

MR. REED: When I make a call, all I do -- what they do is they pull it up on their screen.

MR. ARNOLD: On their computer screen?

MR. REED: That's correct.

MR. ARNOLD: Who did you talk to?

MR. REED: I have -- I couldn't tell you, at the time.

MR. ARNOLD: Couldn't remember who you talked to?

MR. REED: No.

MR. ARNOLD: Do you remember them pulling it up on their computer screen?

MR. REED: Uh, no. All I did is call over and ask for a check on, you know, the ownership of the property.

MR. ARNOLD: Okay. And you did that in 1989?

MR. REED: As I recall, yes, I did.

MR. ARNOLD: And you did it again in 1994?

MR. REED: Two, '92 and '94.

MR. ARNOLD: This particular map here says it's owned by two individuals; doesn't it?

MR. REED: Well, I thought it said Ronnie Earl chambers.

MR. ARNOLD: What were you told in the telephone conversation?

MR. REED: I couldn't tell you that.

MR. ARNOLD: You can't remember what you were told?

MR. REED: No, I cannot remember that.

MR. ARNOLD: So, you don't really recollect what you -- who you were told as being the owner, then?

MR. REED: To tell you precisely, no.

(R. 101-03, Transcript of Trial);



8. On further redirect examination, Mr. Reed testified as follows:

**MS. HURTADO:** As part of your procedure, how do you document that you know who the owner of this is, as far as the complaint procedure?

**MR. REED:** Well, as far as the complaint goes, I would look at the plat, and to verify, you know, who owns the property at the period of time I'm looking at the plat, I would call over to the county recorder's office.

(R. 103-04, Transcript of Trial);

9. In regard to Mr. Reed's prior testimony that he had confirmed ownership by Mr. Ronnie Earl Chambers of the property in 1989 by looking at county recorder plats and by calling and speaking with the county recorder's office (see *id.* at R. 101-02), Mr. Reed testified to the following on further recross-examination:

**MR. ARNOLD:** Just shortly, a few minutes ago, it was your testimony that you took these photographs in 1989; is that correct?

**MR. REED:** That's correct.

**MR. ARNOLD:** On the date so stated, May 23rd?

**MR. REED:** That's correct.

**MR. ARNOLD:** And it was your testimony that at that point in time you tried to determine who the property owner was and you looked at the plat map, call the county recorder's office, and as you recall, you were given the name Ronnie Chambers?

**MR. REED:** Uh-huh.

**MR. ARNOLD:** If that were the case, Mr. Reed, why, then, would you direct this letter in June of '89 to Mr. Storey, the supposed property owner?

**MR. REED:** Because Mr. Storey was on the property plats as owner, he and his son, Eric.

**MR. ARNOLD:** So, you didn't see Mr. Chambers on the property plat, then; did you?

**MR. REED:** Not at this particular time, evidently.

**MR. ARNOLD:** And evidently the recorder didn't tell you that Ronnie Chambers was the property owner; did she?

**MR. REED:** That would be correct, based on this letter here.

(R. 106-07, Transcript of Trial);

10. During the State's case-in-chief, Ms. Yvonne E. Storey, a prior owner of the subject property, testified as follows:

**MS. STOREY:** Okay, The property we've been discussing today, we didn't sell it. My son, Eric, had a home there and my husband, Boyd, decided to deed Eric some of that land, from our name to his name. And at that time we decided to deed about approximately an acre to Earl Chambers. Now, I say it was Earl because that's all I know. It might be -- I don't know what it says on the deed. But it was just my understanding that that acre was deeded to Earl Chambers.

(R. 111, lines 8-15, Transcript of Trial);

11. During the State's case-in-chief, in the course of the direct examination of Mr. Glen E. Burton, the Chief of the Weber Fire District, and his testimony concerning the investigation of the

alleged fire ordinance violation, the following exchange took place between counsel and the trial court:

**MR. ARNOLD:** Objection, Your Honor. That's hearsay. If he's going to tell what Earl said they're doing with the tanks, that's hearsay.

**THE COURT:** That's not hearsay as it relates to the defendant.

**MS. HURTADO:** It's party opponent --

**MR. ARNOLD:** Excuse me?

**MS. HURTADO:** He's a defendant in this matter.

**THE COURT:** That's not hearsay, when you're talking --

**MR. ARNOLD:** Excuse me, Earl Chambers is not a defendant in this matter, Your Honor. Ronnie Chambers is.

**THE COURT:** Okay. Thank you for that distinction. Ronnie Earl Chambers -- There's a Ronnie Earl Chambers and an Earl Chambers; is that correct?

**MR. ARNOLD:** Yes. Could we -- can we clarify which Chambers he's talking to?

**THE COURT:** Yes.

**MR. BURTON:** I was speaking of Earl Chambers, Ron's father.

**MR. ARNOLD:** And he's not a defendant in this action, Your Honor, and I would object to that.

**THE COURT:** Ms. Hurtado?

**MS. HURTADO:** He represented himself to be the owner of the property when he approached him.

(R. 139-41, Transcript of Trial);

12. Upon the State resting its case, trial counsel for Mr. Ronnie Earl Chambers' moved to dismiss on the grounds that the State had failed to tie the charges to Defendant inasmuch as there had "been absolutely no testimony whatsoever" that Defendant was "conducting anything on that property . . ." and that there had been only "futile attempts to establish that he is the supposed property owner . . . ." (R. 162, lines 4-14, Transcript of Trial). The trial court denied the motion because, as the court stated, "The testimony has, in fact, been -- and is shown up there -- that that particular plat [Plaintiff's Exhibit 1] -- that can be challenged, clearly -- shows that the owner of this property is the defendant. As a result of that, the motion is denied at this point." (R. 162, lines 19-23, Transcript of Trial). In response, counsel argued the following:

There's been no testimony . . . as to when that map was created. There is no testimony that that map was created during the periods of time that the allegation is made that [Defendant] made that offense. And I don't think the Court can rely upon that to attach criminal activity to my client. Simply that somebody has put his name on something that hasn't been established, a foundation or anything like that.

(R. 163, Transcript of Trial);

13. Upon conclusion of the bench trial, the trial court immediately found Defendant guilty on both counts (R. 327-29, lines 11-14, R. Transcript of Trial);

14. In the course of its determination that Defendant violated the zoning ordinance, the trial court, as the basis for its ruling, stated:

Some question had been raised about whether or not -- who owns this property. *The prima facie standard* was met when the plats were admitted from the county recorder's office showing the defendant owns that. There is a deed here in '91. The brother has testified that this is the other brother's property and he allows him on with that equipment.

(R. 327, lines 5-10, Transcript of Trial);

15. At sentencing on April 20, 1995, the trial court, for the zoning violation, imposed a fine in the amount of \$750.00 and 90 days in the Weber County Jail. The trial court suspended \$500.00 of the fine and the 90 days in jail "on the condition that every ounce of that equipment is taken out of there within 30 days." For the fire code ordinance violation, the trial court again imposed a fine in the amount of \$750.00 and 90 days in the Weber County Jail, which was suspended on the same condition as that on the zoning violation (Transcript of Sentencing (April 20, 1995), pp. 5-6);

16. The trial court signed its Judgment, Sentence (Commitment) on April 20, 1998, which was entered that same day (R. 34-35, Judgment, Sentence (Commitment));

17. Defendant filed Notice of Appeal on May 11, 1998 (R. 37-38, Notice of Appeal);

18. On January 9, 1996, Defendant / Appellant filed a Motion to Stay Briefing Deadline Pending Temporary Remand to Trial Court For Determination Concerning Trial Exhibit;

19. By Order dated January 29, 1996, this Court granted the Motion to Stay and temporarily remanded the case to the trial court for a determination as to the alleged exhibit tampering;

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