1995

Weber County v. Ronnie Earl Chambers : Brief of Appellee

Utah Court of Appeals

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

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

The trial court correctly denied defendant's motion to dismiss after finding that the States's evidence at the close of its case in chief had established a prima facie case against the defendant, specifically as to the element of ownership of the subject property. In determining

whether the State established a prima facie case sufficient to establish defendant's ownership of the subject property, the appellate court applies the standard as set forth in State v. Dibello, 780 P.2d 1221, 1225 (Utah 1989). The defendant in Dibello appealed a second degree murder conviction, contending there was insufficient evidence to warrant sending the case to the jury. The Dibello court noted that appellate courts should "uphold the trial court's decision if, upon reviewing the evidence and all inferences that can be reasonably drawn from it, [the court] conclude[s] that some evidence exists from which a reasonable jury" (or finder of fact) "could find that the elements of the crime had been proven beyond a reasonable doubt." Id. In addition, the evidence is to be viewed in a light most favorable to the State. State v. Iverson, 10 Utah 2d 171, 350 P.2d 152, 153, (1960).

Thus, in determining whether the State established a prima facie case sufficient to establish defendant's ownership of the subject property anytime between September 22, 1992 and June 22, 1994 for the zoning violation and at anytime between May 6, 1994 and June 22, 1992 for the fire code violation, this Court shall apply the standard as set forth in State v. Dibello, 780 P.2d 1221, 1225 (Utah 1989). In that case the court noted that appellate courts should "uphold the trial court's decision if, upon reviewing the evidence and all inferences that can be reasonably drawn from it [the court] conclude[s] that some evidence exists from which a reasonable jury" or as in the present case the finder of fact "could find that the elements of the crime had been proven beyond a reasonable doubt." Id. In addition, the evidence is to be viewed in a light most favorable to the State. State v. Iverson, 10 Utah 2d 171, 350 P.2d 152, 153 (Utah 1960).

In the present case the trial court correctly denied defendant's Motion to Dismiss after finding that the State's evidence, consisting of testimony from Mr. Barker and Mr. Reed as to the

their verification of the defendant's ownership of the property in question, the admission of Exhibit 1, an enlarged copy of a Weber County property plat map, and testimony from Mr. Barker and Mr. Reed as to the time period in which the defendant owned the property in question, that when viewed in the light most favorable to the State was such that a reasonable finder of fact could find that the elements as the ownership had been proven beyond a reasonable doubt.

The trial court's Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law, signed on August 28, 1996, expressly and by implication disposed of all issues surrounding the alleged altered exhibit for which this Court ordered a temporary remand.

ARGUMENT

POINT I

THE TRIAL COURT CORRECTLY DENIED DEFENDANT'S MOTION TO DISMISS AFTER FINDING THAT THE STATE'S EVIDENCE AT THE CLOSE OF ITS CASE IN CHIEF HAD ESTABLISHED A PRIMA FACIE CASE AGAINST THE DEFENDANT

The trial court correctly denied defendant's motion to dismiss after finding that the States's evidence at the close of its case in chief had established a prima facie case against the defendant, specifically as to the element of ownership of the subject property.

"A defendant's motion to dismiss for insufficient evidence at the conclusion of the State's case in chief requires the trial court to determine whether the defendant must proceed with the introduction of evidence in his defense." State v. Noren, 704 P.2d 568, 570 (Utah 1985); State v. Smith, 675 P.2d 521 (Utah 1983). See also Utah R.Crim.P. 17(o); Utah Code Ann. § 77-17-3.

Contrary to the defendant's claim, that the trial court must find that the State proved each element of the crimes charged beyond a reasonable doubt or must grant a motion to dismiss, Utah statutory provisions and case law disagree. In determining whether the State established a prima facie case sufficient to establish defendant's ownership of the subject property, the appellate court applies the standard as set forth in State v. Dibello, 780 P.2d 1221, 1225 (Utah 1989). The defendant in Dibello appealed a second degree murder conviction, contending there was insufficient evidence to warrant sending the case to the jury. The Dibello court noted that appellate courts should "uphold the trial court's decision if, upon reviewing the evidence and all inferences that can be reasonably drawn from it, [the court] conclude[s] that some evidence exists from which a reasonable jury" (or finder of fact) "could find that the elements of the crime had been proven beyond a reasonable doubt." Id. In addition, the evidence is to be viewed in a light most favorable to the State. State v. Iverson, 10 Utah 2d 171, 350 P.2d 152, 153, (1960). Because the evidence is to be viewed in a light most favorable to the State, the defendant has the burden of marshaling all the evidence that supports the trial court's determination that some evidence exists from which a reasonable trier of fact could find that the elements of the crime had been proven beyond a reasonable doubt.

In the present case, Defendant was charged by information with a violation of Weber County Zoning Ordinance 5-1 et seq., a class B misdemeanor, amended prior to trial to a class C misdemeanor, and violation of the Weber County Fire Code Ordinance 11-1-1 et seq., a class B misdemeanor, in relation to the property located at approximately 4425 East Highway 162 in Weber County. An element of the crimes charged against defendant is the ownership of the property in question.

The evidence as to the element of ownership present by the State during its case in chief, as set forth verbatim in the above Statement of Facts, when viewed in the light most favorable to the State was such that a reasonable finder of fact could find that the elements of the crime had been proven beyond a reasonable doubt. State v Dibello, 780 P.2d 1221, 1225 (Utah 1989).

First, during the State's case in chief, the State present it's proposed Exhibit 1. During trial when state show it's proposed Exhibit 1 to defendant's counsel he stated that he had already seen it (R. 76, line 13). During Mr. Barker's, the Director of the Weber County Planning Commission, testimony he identified State's proposed Exhibit 1 as an enlargement of a Weber County property plat map, which included the property in question (R. 76, lines 16-21). He further testified that Exhibit 1 accurately depicted that area which it showed (R. 76, line 24). He identified for the court the defendant's property and it's land serial number (R. 77, lines 2-4). When asked if he was familiar with the property ownership as depicted on the plat map, Mr. Barker testified he was because prior to the trial he had review the property ownership books (county plat map books) (R. 77, lines 9-14). Then Mr. Reed, the recently retired thirty year planning staff member, testified the he was familiar with the property in question based on personal observation and because he had transposed the location of the property in question onto various maps including the county recorder's plats (R. 87, lines 2-6). He then identified State's proposed Exhibit 1 as an enlargement of the county recorder's plat map and he pointed out the defendant's property on Exhibit 1 (R. 87, lines 8-14). Mrs. Storey, testified that she and her husband owned the property in question until it was deeded away in 1991. Her testimony showed that Exhibit 1 accurately depicted the division of land that occurred (R. 114-115). After Fire Chief Burton, identified the property in question on Plaintiff's proposed Exhibit 1, State requested

that it be admitted into evidence (R 138-139, lines 19-1) The trial court asked defendant if there were any objections, defendant's counsel said, "I have no objections" (R 139, lines 2-4) The trial court received Exhibit 1 (R 139, line 4)

Second, as to the element of ownership during the time periods alleged in the information between September 22, 1992 and June 22, 1994 for the zoning violation, and between May 6, 1994 and June 22, 1994 for the fire code violation, the State present testimony from Mr Barker and Mr Reed Mr Barker testified that the defendant was the present owner of the property based on his review of the property plat maps and his acknowledgment of the accuracy of Exhibit 1 (R 76-77) Mr Barker also testified that zoning violation complaints by his office were first addressed to the defendant in 1991 or 1992 (R 83) Mr Reed testified that he became familiar with the defendant after the defendant came to the county planning office one time and that he and the former planning director spoke with the defendant about the zoning complaint (R 87) In addition, Mr Reed testified as to how complaints are investigation by the planning staff He stated that in order to determine ownership he would located the property on the maps that the planning staff has available, which include the county recorder's plat maps Then he would secure the date that the county recorder has on file as to the ownership of the property, which would include verification of the name of the property owner, and would give the planning staff the address of the property owner Mr Reed stated that he did the normal investigation on the property in question and verified the name of the owner as Mr Chamber in 1992 (R 101) and again 1994 (R 103) During redirect, Mr Reed testified that on June 17, 1994, he wrote a supplemental site report about the defendant's property and addressed to a Deputy Weber County

Attorney and he determine that the defendant was the owner based upon his review of the latest map plats (R. 106).

Defendant argues that the State's evidence is insufficient as to the element of ownership of the property in question. First, defendant argues that the trial court cannot rely on Exhibit 1 in establishing ownership of the property in question because of the lack of foundation, even though the defendant did not object to the acceptance by the trial court of Exhibit 1 at the time it was admitted in evidence. On the contrary, Mr. Barker and Mr. Reed testimony each identified Exhibit 1, stated his familiarity with what Exhibit 1 depicted, stated his basis for his familiarity with the what Exhibit 1 depicted, and his recognition of the defendant's property, and Mr. Barker stated that it was an accurate depiction of the ownership and area in question.

Second, defendant argues that the State's evidence is insufficient as to the element of ownership of the property in question for the time period alleged in the charges. On the contrary, although defendant does point out that Mr. Reed's memory was unclear as to who the property owner was in 1989, his written documentation was accurate. In addition, the ownership of the property in question for the time period alleged in the charges is from September 22, 1992 until June 22, 1994. And Mr. Reed testified that he verified that the defendant was the owner of the property in 1992 and 1994. As support for his contention that the State's evidence was insufficient as to the time period alleged in the charges the defendant claims that Mr. Barker contradicted his prior testimony and that he actually utilized the correspondence in his file to determine ownership of the property and that he did not recall a property plat. What the defendant fails to mention is that Mr. Barker's replies are in response to questions concerning Mr. Storey, the owner of the property in 1989 and whether there was a property plat in the file which

showed Mr. Storey as the owner of the property in 1989 (R. 84, lines 14-22). Defendant also claims that Mr. Barker stated that there was another person in his office more qualified to answer question concerning ownership of the property. In fact, is was after defense counsel asked Mr. Barker questions concerning what was in the county's complaint file in 1989, and Mr. Barker responded that he did not have the entire complaint file, and he did not recall if there was a property plat in the file, but he stated that there is another member of the planning commission who would be doing the complaints at the time and that individual would be better able to answer questions concerning what was in the file than he could (R. 84, lines 16-25).

Third, defendant's claim that the State's utilization of Plaintiff's Exhibit 1 is troubling because Plaintiff's counsel, failed to inform either the trial court or opposing counsel of the alteration or enhancement of her proposed Exhibit 1. On the contrary, defense counsel claimed he had seen the proposed Exhibit 1 prior to its introduction at trial (R. 17, line 14). In addition, both Mr. Barker and Mr. Reed testified that State's proposed Exhibit 1 was an enlarged copy of a Weber County property plat map (R. 76, lines 19-21; 87, lines 8-9).

Thus, in determining whether the State established a prima facie case sufficient to establish defendant's ownership of the subject property anytime between September 22, 1992 and June 22, 1994 for the zoning violation and at anytime between May 6, 1994 and June 22, 1992 for the fire code violation, this Court shall apply the standard as set forth in State v. Dibello, 780 P.2d 1221, 1225 (Utah 1989). In that case the court noted that appellate courts should "uphold the trial court's decision if, upon reviewing the evidence and all inferences that can be reasonably drawn from it [the court] conclude[s] that some evidence exists from which a reasonable jury" or as in the present case the finder of fact "could find that the elements of the crime had been

proven beyond a reasonable doubt.” Id. In addition, the evidence is to be viewed in a light most favorable to the State. State v. Iverson, 10 Utah 2d 171, 350 P.2d 152, 153 (Utah 1960).

In the present case the trial court correctly denied defendant’s Motion to Dismiss after finding that the State’s evidence, consisting of testimony from Mr. Barker and Mr. Reed as to the their verification of the defendant’s ownership of the property in question, the admission of Exhibit 1, an enlarged copy of a Weber County property plat map, and testimony from Mr. Barker and Mr. Reed as to the time period in which the defendant owned the property in question, that when viewed in the light most favorable to the State was such that a reasonable finder of fact could find that the elements as the ownership had been proven beyond a reasonable doubt.

POINT II

THE TRIAL COURT’S FINDINGS OF FACT AND CONCLUSIONS OF LAW EXPRESSLY AND BY IMPLICATION DISPOSED OF ALL ISSUES SURROUNDING THE ALLEGED ALTERED EXHIBIT FOR WHICH THIS COURT ORDERED A TEMPORARY REMAND.

Rule 52(b), of the Utah Rules of Civil Procedure provides in relevant part that, “[u]pon motion of a party made not later than 10 days after entry of judgment the court may amend its findings or make additional findings and may amend the judgment accordingly.” Rule 52(b) is made applicable to criminal proceedings by Utah Rules of Civil Procedure 81(e). It states, “[t]hese rules of procedure shall also govern in any aspect of criminal proceedings where there is no other applicable statute or rule, provided, that any rule so applied does not conflict with any statutory or constitutional requirement.”

“If a Rule 52(b) motion is made before judgment and presents a substantial question, and the motion is not disposed of, either expressly or by necessary implication, by the judgment, the running of the time for taking an appeal is suspended under Rule 73(a) until the court disposes of the motion.” Zions First Nat’l Bank v C’est Bon Venture, 613 P.2d 515 (Utah 1980).

On June 26, 1996, the trial court made Finding as to the alleged exhibit tampering issue. In the Findings the trial court directed the State to prepare appropriate Findings of Facts, Conclusions and Order, for the court’s signature and to submit to defendant’s counsel consistent with the appropriate rules. On or about July 22, 1996, defendant filed a Motion to Amend and Clarify Findings. On August 28, 1996, the trial court signed the Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law and Order as prepared by the State. No subsequent Motion have been filed with the trial court since that date, August 28, 1996.

In defendant’s Motion to Amend and Clarify Findings, he objected to the trial court’s findings that no objections were raised by the defendant either to the introduction, use or acceptance [of Plaintiff’s Exhibit 1].” Defendant claims that the record indicates the defendant’s trial counsel moved to dismiss and objected to the trial court’s reliance on Plaintiff’s Exhibit 1 for lack of foundation and other reasons. The Findings of Fact specifically address this issue in paragraphs 4, 5, 6, 7, and 8 (R 408-13)

4 After having Weber County's proposed Exhibit 1 marked Weber County showed the exhibit to defense counsel (See Transcript p 17 line 13)

5 Defense counsel acknowledged that he had seen Weber County's proposed Exhibit 1 and made no objection. (See Transcript p 17 line 14)

6 Weber County through the use of the following witness Craig Barker, Edward T Reed, and Yvonne Erickson Storey established

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